
Jefferson County Board of Health Agenda 
1541 Annex Road, Jefferson, WI 53549 

920-674-7275 
October 16th, 2024 

1:00 p.m. 
Jefferson County Courthouse  

311 S. Center Avenue, Room C1021 
Jefferson, WI  53549 

 
Join Zoom Meeting:  

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88388950496?pwd=ZlVxajA5Q1hFQTZSRytoWnhZbzFldz09 

Meeting ID: 883 8895 0496  
Passcode: 045109  

Board Members 
Samantha LaMuro, R.T, Chair; Meg Turville-Heitz, Vice-Chair; Steve Nass; Jessica Coburn, RN, PhD; Donald 

Williams, MD 

1. Call to Order 
2. Roll Call (establish a quorum) 
3. Certification of Compliance with the Open Meetings Law 
4. Approval of the Agenda 
5. Approval of Board of Health Meeting Minutes from July 17th, 2024 
6. Communications 

a. 0512 – 07/23/2024 Disruptions in Availability of Becton Dickinson (BD) BACTEC™ Blood Culture 
Bottles 

b. 0513 – 08/07/2024 Mpox Caused by Human-to-Human Transmission of Monkeypox Virus in the 
Democratic Republic of the Congo with Spread to Neighboring Countries 

c. 0514 – 08/13/2024 Increase in Human Parvovirus B19 Activity in the United States 
d. 0515 – 08/16/2024 Increased Oropouche Virus Activity and Associated Risk to Travelers 
e. 0516 – 09/23/2024 Prevention Strategies for Mpox, including Vaccinating People at Risk via 

Sexual Exposure, for U.S. Travelers Visiting Countries with Clade I Mpox Outbreaks 
f. 0517 – 10/03/2024 First Marburg Virus Disease Outbreak in the Republic of Rwanda 
g. WI DHS- Suspected Opioid Activity Alert 
h. Jefferson County Health Department 2024 Quarter 3 Newsletter 

7. Public Comment 
8. Approval of Health Department Financial Report 
9. Discussion and Approval of $1900.00 in restricted donations for Spanish Speaking Focus Groups 
10. Discussion and Approval of Five-Year Drug Free Communities Grant 
11. Discussion and Approval of the 2023-2026 Community Health Improvement Plan 
12. Operational Update of the Environmental Public Health Consortium 

a. Discontinuation of Body Art and Body Piercing Inspections 
b. Sampling and Analyzing of DNR Transient Non-Community Water Systems 

13. Operational Update of the Public Health Divisions 
a. Recruitment: Program Assistant- DFC  
b. Divisional Statistics 2024 Quarter 3 Report 
c. Review of Communicable Disease Cases Reported 
d. Nitrate Screening Data 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88388950496?pwd=ZlVxajA5Q1hFQTZSRytoWnhZbzFldz09
https://emergency.cdc.gov/han/2024/han00512.asp
https://emergency.cdc.gov/han/2024/han00512.asp
https://emergency.cdc.gov/han/2024/han00512.asp
https://emergency.cdc.gov/han/2024/han00513.asp
https://emergency.cdc.gov/han/2024/han00513.asp
https://emergency.cdc.gov/han/2024/han00513.asp
https://emergency.cdc.gov/han/2024/han00514.asp
https://emergency.cdc.gov/han/2024/han00514.asp
https://emergency.cdc.gov/han/2024/han00515.asp
https://emergency.cdc.gov/han/2024/han00515.asp
https://emergency.cdc.gov/han/2024/han00516.asp
https://emergency.cdc.gov/han/2024/han00516.asp
https://emergency.cdc.gov/han/2024/han00516.asp
https://emergency.cdc.gov/han/2024/han00517.asp
https://emergency.cdc.gov/han/2024/han00517.asp


14. Operational Update on the Strategic Plan 
a. Strategic Plan 2024 Quarter 3 Report 
b. Employee Satisfaction Survey Results 

15. Discussion on Foundational Public Health Services Costing and Capacity Assessment 
16. Future Agenda Items 
17. Adjourn 

 
Next Scheduled Meeting: January 15th, 2025 
A Quorum of any Jefferson County Committee, Board, Commission or other body, including the Jefferson County Board of Supervisors, may be present 
at this meeting. 

Individuals requiring special accommodations for attendance at the meeting should contact the County Administrator at 920-674-7101 24 hours prior 
to the meeting so appropriate arrangements can be made. 



 

Jefferson County Health Department 
1541 Annex Road, Jefferson, WI 53549 

920-674-7275 

 

Jefferson County Board of Health Minutes 
July 17, 2024 

Jefferson County Courthouse  
311 S. Center Avenue, Room C1021 

Jefferson, WI  53549 
or Zoom Meeting 

 
Board Members 

Samantha LaMuro, R.T, Chair; Meg Turville-Heitz, Vice-Chair; Steve Nass; 
Jessica Coburn, RN, PhD; Donald Williams, MD 

 
 

1. Call to Order:  Meeting was called to order by Wehmeier at 1:04 p.m. 
2. Roll Call (establish a quorum): 

Board of Health Members Present:  Samantha LaMuro, R.T.; Meg Turville-Heitz; Steve 
Nass; Jessica Coburn, RN, PhD (came after roll call); Donald Williams, M.D.  Quorum 
established per Wehmeier. 
Others Present:  Elizabeth McGeary, Director; Kendell Cooper, Public Health Program 
Manager; Ben Wehmeier, County Administrator; Michele Schmidt, Recorder; Holly Hisel, 
Environmental Health (via zoom); Patricia Cicero, Land and Water Conservation 
Director. 
Guest:  Anita Martin. 

3. Certification of Compliance with the Open Meetings Law:  Wehmeier certified 
compliance with the Open Meetings Law. 

4. Approval of the Agenda:  No changes to the Agenda were requested.  Motion by 
Nass/Turville-Heitz to approve the Agenda.  Motion passed 4-0. 

5. Election of Officers – Chair and Vice-Chair:  Motion by Nass/Williams to appoint LaMuro 
as Chair.  LaMuro accepted.  Motion passed 4-0.  Motion by Nass/Williams to appoint 
Turville-Heitz as Vice Chair.  Turville-Heitz accepted.  Motion passed 4-0. 

6. Approval of Board of Health Meeting Minutes April 17th, 2024:  Motion by 
Nass/Turville-Heitz to approve the minutes as printed.  Motion passed 4-0.   

7. Communications 
a. CDC Health Alert Network:  0510-06/13/2024 Increased Risk of Dengue Virus 

Infections in the United States – McGeary discussed. 
b. CDC Health Alert Network:  0509-06/12/2024 Severe Illness Potentially 

Associated with Consuming Diamond Shruumz TM Brand Chocolate Bars, Cones, 
and Gummies – McGeary discussed.  



 

c. CDC Health Alert Network:  0508-05/20/2024 Meningococcal Disease Cases 
Linked to Travel to the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia (KSA):  Ensure Pilgrims are 
Current on Meningococcal Vaccination - McGeary discussed. 

d. CDC Health Alert Network:  0507-04/23/2024 Adverse Effects Linked to 
Counterfeit or Mishandled Botulinum Toxin Injections – McGeary discussed. 

8. Public Comment:  1 guest spoke on Agenda #14. 
9. Approval of Health Department Financial Report:  Schmidt reviewed the “May 2024 

Statement of Revenue & Expense Report”.  Motion by Williams/Nass to approve the 
financial report.  Motion passed 5-0. 

10. Discussion and Approval of $40,000.00 Immunization Grant:  McGeary discussed the 
Grant.  This will assist the Health Department with revenue to bring the LPN to the 
Health Department full time instead of sharing the position with Human Services.  
Motion by Nass/Williams to approve the Immunization Grant.  Motion passed 5–0.  

11. Discussion and Approval of $9009.00 WI WINS Grant:  McGeary discussed the Grant 
and the Health Department will serve as fiscal agent for Dodge and Jefferson Counties.  
Motion by Nass/Turville-Heitz to approve the WI WINS Grant.  Motion passed 5-0. 

12. Discussion and Approval of $500.00 in restriction donations for Safe Sleep Program:  
McGeary discussed the Kiwanis Club of Jefferson donation for the Safe Sleep Program.  
Motion by Williams/Turville-Heitz to approve the restricted donation.  Motion passed 5-
0. 

13. Operational Update of the Environmental Health Program:  Hisel reported end of year 
inspections.  Hisel reported that the Jefferson County Fair inspections went well.  Hisel 
reported on a pool incident that happened over the weekend.    

14. Discussion on Nitrate Screening Data Collection:  McGeary discussed the data that has 
been collected.  Cicero discussed how the collection of data works.  Cicero reported that 
she is waiting for the ground water study report to come. Nitrate Screening Data 
collection continues as is.  

15. Operational Update of the Public Health Divisions 
a. Public Health Program Manager – Kendell Cooper – McGeary introduced Cooper as the 

new Public Health Manager.  Bender retired.     
b. Full Time – Licensed Practitioner Nurse –  McGeary discussed. 
c. Vacant Position – Communicable Disease Nurse – McGeary reported that so far 7 

candidates have applied.  Interviews have begun.   
d. Divisional Updates -  McGeary provided updates. 
e. Review of Statistics –   McGeary reviewed. 
f. Review of Communicable Disease Cases Reported – Cooper discussed the 

communicable disease report.   
16.  Operational Update on the Strategic Plan:  McGeary provided updates on each of the   

priority areas within the strategic plan.  
17. Discussion and Approval of the 2023 Annual Report:  McGeary discussed the Report.  

McGeary discussed the addition to page 26.  Motion by Turville-Heitz/Williams to 
approve the 2023 Annual Report with the changes to the Environmental Health.  Motion 
passed 5-0. 

18.  Future Agenda Items:  No future Agenda items were requested at this time.  



 

19.  Adjourn:  Motion by Nass/Turville-Heitz to adjourn the meeting at 2:19 p.m.  Motion   
passed 5-0. 
 

Next Scheduled Meeting:  October 16th, 2024 
 
Minutes prepared by:  Michele Schmidt, Accountant ll, Jefferson County Health Department and reviewed by Elizabeth McGeary, 
Director/Health Officer. 



Disease

Confirmed

July
2024

Confirmed

August
2024

Confirmed

September
2024

Campylobacteriosis 4 3 1
Cryptosporidiosis 5 5 -
Cyclosporiasis - - -
E. Coli 2 3 2
Giardiasis 2 2 1
Listeriosis - - -
Plesiomonas Infection - - -
Salmonellosis 2 3 3
Shigellosis - - -
Vibriosis, Non Cholera - - -
Yersiniosis - - -

Invasive Strep A & B - 2 1
Invasive Strep (Other) - - -

Blastomycosis - 1 -
Coccidioidomycosis - - -
Histoplasmosis - - -

Asbestosis - - -
Influenza - - -
Influenza Hospitalizations - - -
Respiratory Syncytial Virus 
(RSV)

- - -

RSV Hospitalizations - - -
Covid-19 Hospitalizations 7 20 13
Legionellosis - - -
Silicosis - - -
Tuberculosis - - -
Latent Tuberculosis 3 3 -

Enteric/Gastrointestinal

Invasive Bacteria

Mycotic (fungal)

Respiratory

Sexually Transmitted



Chlamydia Trachomatis 14 8 12
Gonorrhea 1 - 2

Haemophilus Influenzae 
Invasive Disease

1 - -

Hepatitis A - - -
Hepatitis B, Acute - - -
Hepatitis B, Chronic - - -
Mumps - - -
Pertussis 6 4 3
Strep Pneumonia - - -
Varicella (Chickenpox) - - -

Arboviral Illness 
West Nile Virus

- - -

Anaplasmosis - - -
Babesiosis - 1 -
Lyme Disease 4 - -

Toxoplasmosis - 1 -

Brucellosis - - -
Q Fever - - -

Meningitis, Bacterial Other - - -

Carbon Monoxide Poisoning - 1 -

Hepatitis C, Acute - - -
Hepatitis C, Chronic - 1 2
Multidrug Resistant 
Organisms (MDROs)

- - 1

Methicillin Resistant Staph 
Aureus (MRSA)

- - -

Mycobacterial Disease 1 - -
Norovirus Infection - - -

Vectorborne

Zoonotic

Other

Vaccine Preventable



Total 52 58 41



6 . 8 . 2 3  F I R S T  M E N T A L  H E A L T H  W O R K G R O U P  M E E T S  A T  M A D I S O N  A R E A  T E C H N I C A L  C O L L E G E  I N  W A T E R T O W N .
I N T R O D U C T I O N  O F  T H E  C O M M U N I T Y  H E A L T H  A S S E S S M E N T / C O M M U N I T Y  H E A L T H  I M P R O V E M E N T  P L A N  A N D
R E S U L T S  B A S E D  A C C O U N T A B I L I T Y  P R O C E S S .  D A T A  W A S  S H A R E D  O N  H O W  W E  A R E  D O I N G  A N D  W H Y .  T H E

Q U E S T I O N  W A S  A S K E D :  W H A T  A R E  T H E  Q U A L I T Y  O F  L I F E  C O N D I T I O N S  W E  W A N T  T O  S E E  F O R  T H E  C O M M U N I T Y
A S  I T  R E L A T E S  T O  M E N T A L  H E A L T H  &  W E L L B E I N G ?  ( R E S P O N S E S )

T H E  G R O U P  I D E N T I F I E S  T H E  O V E R A L L  O U T C O M E :  
T O  H A V E  A L L  C H I L D R E N  &  F A M I L I E S  W I T H I N  O U R  C O M M U N I T Y  S T A B L E  &  C O N N E C T E D .

OVERALL OBJECTIVEOVERALL OBJECTIVE

STRATEGIESSTRATEGIES
1 0 . 1 7 . 2 3  R E V I E W  O F  E X I S T I N G  E F F O R T S  &  G A P S .  E V I D E N C E  B A S E D  P R A C T I C E S  W E R E  S H A R E D .  B A S E D  O N

T H I S  I N F O R M A T I O N  A N D  P R E V I O U S L Y  S H A R E D  D A T A ,  T H E  G R O U P  B R A I N S T O R M E D  S T R A T E G I E S  T H A T  W O U L D
S U P P O R T  O U R  P R I O R I T I E S  A N D  V O T E D  O N  O U R  T O P  3 :

1 )  C O U N T Y - W I D E  E V E N T S  T O  S U P P O R T  S O C I A L  C O N N E C T E D N E S S  
2 )  M E N T A L  H E A L T H  F I R S T  A I D  T R A I N I N G  F O R  V O L U N T E E R S / C O M M U N I T Y  M E M B E R S

3 )  A D D R E S S I N G  F A M I L Y  C O P I N G  S K I L L S  

Priority Area: Access to Affordable Quality Mental Health Care

2 . 1 3 . 2 4  D E E P E R  D I V E  I N T O  S O C I A L  C O N N E C T E D N E S S .  S H A R E D  W H A T  I S  G O I N G  O N  A T  A  N A T I O N A L  L E V E L .
A S K E D  T H E  G R O U P :  W H A T  D O E S  S O C I A L  C O N N E C T I O N  L O O K ,  F E E L ,  A N D  S O U N D  L I K E ?  G R O U P  T O  P A R T N E R
W I T H  A  N A T I O N A L  O R G A N Z A T I O N ,  H E A L T H Y  P L A C E S  B Y  D E S I G N ,  A N D  R E C O N V E N E  I N  J U N E  F O R  A
C O M M U N I T Y  N A R R A T I V E  W O R K S H O P .

SOCIAL CONNECTEDNESSSOCIAL CONNECTEDNESS

1 1 . 7 . 2 3  M E N T A L  H E A L T H  W A S  D E F I N E D  A S  A  G R O U P  A N D  E A C H  O R G A N I Z A T I O N  D I S C U S S E D  H O W  T H E Y  A R E
A L R E A D Y ,  O R  H O W  T H E Y  W I L L ,  I M P L E M E N T  T H E S E  S T R A T E G I E S .  D I S C U S S E D  P E R F O R M A N C E  M E A S U R E S  T H A T

W I L L  B E  L O O K E D  A T  B Y  E A C H  O R G A N I Z A T I O N .  
B E G I N  T O  C R E A T E  T H E  A C T I O N  P L A N  F O R  A  S O C I A L L Y  C O N N E C T E D  C O M M U N I T Y .  

W O R K G R O U P  T O  R E C O N V E N E  I N  F E B R U A R Y .

   9 . 2 6 . 2 3  T H E  G R O U P  D I S C U S S E D  G A P S  W I T H I N  O U R  C O M M U N I T Y  A N D  E S T A B L I S H E D  O U R  I N D I C A T O R S :
1 )  D E C R E A S E  T H E  P E R C E N T A G E  O F  Y O U T H  R E P O R T I N G  D E P R E S S I O N / A N X I E T Y .  

2 )  I N C R E A S E  T H E  N U M B E R  O F  Y O U T H  R E C E I V I N G  H E L P  W H E N  T H E Y  N E E D  I T .

MEASUREMENTSMEASUREMENTS

8 . 8 . 2 3  E X I S T I N G  E F F O R T S  W E R E  S H A R E D  O U T  B Y  E A C H  O R G A N I Z A T I O N ,  T H E  I M P O R T A N C E  O F  S O C I A L
C O N N E C T E D N E S S  W A S  I N T R O D U C E D ,  A N D  T H E  G R O U P  D I S C U S S E D  P O P U L A T I O N  L E V E L  I N D I C A T O R S  T H A T

A R E  A V A I L A B L E  T O  S U P P O R T  O U R  W O R K .  

3 . 2 4 - 6 - 2 4  S E E K  M O R E  I N P U T  F R O M  C O M M U N I T Y  M E M B E R S  O N  S O C I A L  C O N N E C T E D N E S S .  F U R T H E R  T H E S E
E F F O R T S  B Y  W O R K I N G  W I T H  H E A L T H Y  P L A C E S  B Y  D E S I G N  T O  L E A R N  A B O U T  A  C O M M U N I T Y  N A R R A T I V E ,

W O R K S H O P  C O M M U N I T Y  V A L U E S ,  F R A M E  C O M M U N I T Y  M E S S A G E S ,  A N D  C O N D U C T  C O M M U N I T Y
C O N V E R S A T I O N S  T O  I M P R O V E  S O C I A L  C O N N E C T E D N E S S .

1 2 . 2 3  - 1 . 2 4  D J H C P  M E N T A L  H E A L T H  S U B - G R O U P S  C O N T I N U E D  M E E T I N G  T O  D I S C U S S  T H E  P L A N  F O R  A
S O C I A L L Y  C O N N E C T E D  C O M M U N I T Y .

2 0 2 4  - 2 0 2 6  O N G O I N G  W O R K  O N  A C T I O N  P L A N .

ACTION PLANACTION PLAN

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1j8lFHdMB9xvhUZBZjjgHBznMfsKPR-yB/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1nuSm6C4IixXvVH2xL3Cb3ie7JZLl8GkT/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1xm9QvNawh8BNR3lIj6kK9qSRUTV6SDh0/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1cDkRG-Hok-nWCJPSBHwCLKQoMKHaICgO/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1REEW3fym4HpP2zmQbyKkSUSeCeTEsgNB/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1cJcc1tPhiezWdGbX0FIADfr50v8djiGs/view?usp=drive_link
https://healthyplacesbydesign.org/
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1brMmDmHuCLivRKmwkxkif48ropXJ-OOH/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1w-62ZPnCsxCheVZ_XLBmSSEBzwSAZ7jW/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1buSVzwHbbTHJnLAaOVS8lq6eqEJh81t9/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1KQfdNcTGRRjhCJzDGmC7jwsefyntMQdD/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1-lxqi5tI-LCk6NW80rbqKhEX60WchVxh/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1-lxqi5tI-LCk6NW80rbqKhEX60WchVxh/view?usp=drive_link


1 2 . 7 . 2 3  T W E A K E D  O U R  I N D I C A T O R  # 1   T O  “ P E R C E N T  O F  M E D I C A L  A P P O I N T M E N T S  M I S S E D  D U E  T O
T R A N S P O R T A T I O N ” .  T H R E E  S T R A T E G I E S  W E R E  C H O S E N :

1 )  I N C R E A S E  D R I V E R  R E C R U I T M E N T  F O R  P A I D  A N D  U N P A I D  D R I V E R S
2 )  I N C R E A S E  F U N D I N G  F O R  T R A N S P O R T A T I O N  S E R V I C E S

3 )  I N C R E A S E  A W A R E N E S S  O F  T R A N S P O R T A T I O N  S E R V I C E S  T O  C O N S U M E R S .  
S T A R T  O F  A C T I O N  P L A N N I N G .

1 0 . 1 2 . 2 3  D I S C U S S E D  W H A T  D A T A  W E  N E E D ,  W H O  W E  N E E D  T O  G E T  I T  F R O M ,  A N D  W H O  H A S  T H E
C O N N E C T I O N S  T O  G E T  I T .  L O O K I N G  F O R  H E L P  F R O M  T H E  H E A L T H C A R E  S Y S T E M S ,  A N D  C O U N T Y  &  P R I V A T E

T R A N S P O R T A T I O N  S E R V I C E S .  
D A T A  C O L L E C T I O N  I S  T H E  S T A R T  O F  T H E  A C T I O N  P L A N .

9 . 1 4 . 2 3  R E V I E W E D  A V A I L A B L E  D A T A  A N D  C H O S E  T W O  I N D I C A T O R S  T O  F O C U S  O N :
1 )  M I S S E D  M E D I C A L  A P P O I N T M E N T S  D U E  T O  T R A N S P O R T A T I O N

2 )  N U M B E R  O F  C O M M U N I T Y  M E M B E R S  U S I N G  T R A N S P O R T A T I O N  F O R  M E D I C A L  A P P O I N T M E N T S .

2 . 8 . 2 4  C O M M I T M E N T  F R O M  T H E  V A R I O U S  E N T I T I E S  T O  P R O V I D E  D A T A .  C O N T I N U E D  D I S C U S S I O N  O N
A C T I V I T I E S  F O R  E A C H  O F  T H E  T H R E E  S T R A T E G I E S  A N D  T H E N  C O M M I T M E N T  B Y  W O R K G R O U P  P A R T I C I P A N T S

T O  T A K E  O W N E R S H I P  O F  A C T I V I T I E S .

1 1 . 9 . 2 3  D E E P E R  D I V E  I N T O  T U R N  T H E  C U R V E  P L A N  A N D  T H E  R B A  P R O C E S S .  R E V I E W E D  D A T A  C O L L E C T I O N
–  H O S P I T A L S  T O  S T A R T  C O L L E C T I O N  E F F O R T S .  B R A I N S T O R M I N G  A N D  I D E A  S H A R I N G ,  L I S T  O F  S T R A T E G I E S

D E V E L O P E D  A N D  G R O U P  V O T E D  O N  T O P  3 .

8 . 1 0 . 2 3  L O O K E D  A T  E X I S T I N G  E F F O R T S  A N D  G A P S  I N  O U R  T W O  C O U N T I E S .  

T W O  P R I O R I T Y  S T R A T E G I E S  W E R E  C H O S E N  B Y  T H E  W O R K G R O U P :  

1 )  I N C R E A S E  A C C E S S  T O  T R A N S P O R T A T I O N  F O R  N O N - E M E R G E N C Y  M E D I C A L  A P P O I N T M E N T S  
2 )  R A I S E  A W A R E N E S S  O F  A V A I L A B L E  T R A N S P O R T A T I O N  R E S O U R C E S .

6 . 8 . 2 3  F I R S T  T R A N S P O R T A T I O N  W O R K G R O U P  M E E T I N G  M E E T S  A T  M A D I S O N  A R E A  T E C H N I C A L  C O L L E G E  I N
W A T E R T O W N .  T H E  Q U E S T I O N  W A S  A S K E D :  W H A T  I S  T H E  Q U A L I T Y  O F  L I F E  C O N D I T I O N S  W E  W A N T  F O R  O U R

C O M M U N I T Y  A S  F A R  A S  T R A N S P O R T A T I O N ?  C O L L E C T I V E L Y  T H E  G R O U P  D E C I D E D :  A L L  P E O P L E  I N  O U R
C O M M U N I T Y  H A V E  A C C E S S  T O  S A F E ,  R E L I A B L E  A N D  A F F O R D A B L E  T R A N S P O R T A T I O N  O P T I O N S .

4 . 1 1 . 2 4  W H E R E  I S  T H E  M O M E N T U M ?  H O W  C A N  W E  S U P P O R T  T H I S  A S  A  G R O U P ?  W H A T  D O  E A C H  O F  T H E  V A R I O U S
O R G A N I Z A T I O N S  N E E D  F R O M  T H E  W O R K G R O U P  T O  M O V E  F O R W A R D  W I T H  T H E I R  A C T I O N  P L A N  A C T I V I T I E S ?

OVERALL OBJECTIVEOVERALL OBJECTIVE

STRATEGIESSTRATEGIES

MEASUREMENTMEASUREMENT

DATA COLLECTIONDATA COLLECTION

RESULTS BASEDRESULTS BASED
ACCOUNTABILITY FRAMEWORKACCOUNTABILITY FRAMEWORK

ACTION PLANACTION PLAN

Priority Area: Access to Affordable Reliable Transportation

2 0 2 4  - 2 0 2 6  O N G O I N G  W O R K  O N  A C T I O N  P L A N .

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1R1DnvWkIskhCd48u8VUFFRNumJxIL5Qc/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1DHGwYYjukFYVMhHhUAUkT-Q2hb7z_iGT/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1DqKGfwprF1ZCySnAbZxRQY0FZ47AysUR/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1m4rPxOxetnWX609q3XYXg2K0EiNSlUAT/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1dx0PLQXqIdbN45k_Ak_tX49Y6q71TE3_/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1ql7aYwpLy2Po4RbSpGTPnbaDV8xyEcrB/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1U2joKw0zCDqNe4vwSO8E9EQb05PYiMIH/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1f66JYc2QGtqLKjEhyPEg3_nnswOPou9m/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1evp5S0ZL3-1S1E5u-XtqML-Xv_Jrbm8w/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1evp5S0ZL3-1S1E5u-XtqML-Xv_Jrbm8w/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1FWEm-j9zj8XtlpRpJDmcAOI2IFmvb0ql/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/13CkeFqnUsecU5GcSXoMFy4x-UJN56YjW/view?usp=drive_link


JANUARY - 
JULY
2023

D J H C P  S T E E R I N G  C O M M I T T E E  M E E T S  M O N T H L Y

NOVEMBER
2022 -

JANUARY
2023

P A R T N E R S  A P P R O V E  C H A

MAY - 
JULY 2022

I N F O R M A T I O N  G A T H E R I N G ,  U S I N G  S E C O N D A R Y  P U B L I C
H E A L T H  S O U R C E S

OCTOBER 11 -
NOVEMBER

2022

APRIL
2022

D J H C P  B E G I N S  C O M M U N I T Y  H E A L T H  A S S E S S M E N T  F O R  D O D G E  A N D
J E F F E R S O N  C O U N T I E S

NOVEMBER
2021

D O D G E  A N D  J E F F E R S O N  H E A L T H I E R  C O M M U N I T Y  P A R T N E R S H I P  ( D J H C P )
S T E E R I N G  C O M M I T T E E  K I C K O F F

AUGUST 11,
2022

C O M M U N I T Y  H E A L T H  S U M M I T

OCTOBER
2023 -

DECEMBER
 2024

D J H C P  S T E E R I N G  C O M M I T T E E  M E E T I N G S  M O V E  T O  Q U A R T E R L Y

JUNE -
NOVEMBER

2023

JANUARY
2023

FEBRUARY
2024

W O R K G R O U P S  E S T A B L I S H  A N  A C T I O N  P L A N  F O R  E A C H
P R I O R I T Y

2024 -
2026

M E N T A L  H E A L T H  &  T R A N S P O R T A T I O N  W O R K G R O U P S  L E D  B Y  D J H C P  M E E T  M O N T H L Y

C O M M U N I T Y  H E A L T H  A S S E S S M E N T
( C H A )  D I S T R I B U T E D  F O R  P A R T N E R
A P P R O V A L

Community Health Assessment and
Improvement Plan Timeline

D J H C P  E S T A B L I S H E S  C O M M U N I T Y  W O R K G R O U P S  F O R   T H E  P R I O R I T Y
A R E A S  O F  M E N T A L  H E A L T H  &  T R A N S P O R T A T I O N .  
G R E A T E R  W A T E R T O W N  C O M M U N I T Y  H E A L T H  F O U N D A T I O N   ( G W C H F )  T O
H E L P  A D D R E S S  T H E  P R I O R I T Y  A R E A S  O F  H O U S I N G  &  C H I L D C A R E .

D J H C P  C O N T I N U E S  O N G O I N G  W O R K  O N
A C T I O N  P L A N S

https://watertownhealthfoundation.com/Housing.html
https://watertownhealthfoundation.com/EarlyCareandEducation.html


Access to
Affordable

Quality
Mental Health

Care

Access to
Affordable

Quality Housing
and Affordable

Reliable
Transportation

Access to
Affordable

Quality
Childcare

Equitable access to community-based resources and supports

TOP 3 IDENTIFIED COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS:



Date Event/Location Number of Samples Lab Tests Recommended Lab Kits Provided
02/03/2024 Fort Wellness Day 30 9 6
04/01/2024 National Public Health Week 3 0 0

4/20/2024 Earth Day Fair (Jefferson, WI) 7 2 6
6/3/2024 LWCD Office 1 0 1

6/22/2024 Health Department Open House 6 6 7
7/3/2024 LWCD Office 1 0 1
7/8/2024 JCHD Office 1 0 0

7/10/2024 JC Fair 0 0
7/11/2024 JC Fair 0 1
7/12/2024 JC Fair 0 0 0
7/17/2024 LWCD Office 1







 

Jefferson County Health Department 
1541 Annex Road, Jefferson, WI 53549 

920-674-7275 

 

Jefferson County Board of Health Minutes 
July 17, 2024 

Jefferson County Courthouse  
311 S. Center Avenue, Room C1021 

Jefferson, WI  53549 
or Zoom Meeting 

 
Board Members 

Samantha LaMuro, R.T, Chair; Meg Turville-Heitz, Vice-Chair; Steve Nass; 
Jessica Coburn, RN, PhD; Donald Williams, MD 

 
 

1. Call to Order:  Meeting was called to order by Wehmeier at 1:04 p.m. 
2. Roll Call (establish a quorum): 

Board of Health Members Present:  Samantha LaMuro, R.T.; Meg Turville-Heitz; Steve 
Nass; Jessica Coburn, RN, PhD (came after roll call); Donald Williams, M.D.  Quorum 
established per Wehmeier. 
Others Present:  Elizabeth McGeary, Director; Kendell Cooper, Public Health Program 
Manager; Ben Wehmeier, County Administrator; Michele Schmidt, Recorder; Holly Hisel, 
Environmental Health (via zoom); Patricia Cicero, Land and Water Conservation 
Director. 
Guest:  Anita Martin. 

3. Certification of Compliance with the Open Meetings Law:  Wehmeier certified 
compliance with the Open Meetings Law. 

4. Approval of the Agenda:  No changes to the Agenda were requested.  Motion by 
Nass/Turville-Heitz to approve the Agenda.  Motion passed 4-0. 

5. Election of Officers – Chair and Vice-Chair:  Motion by Nass/Williams to appoint LaMuro 
as Chair.  LaMuro accepted.  Motion passed 4-0.  Motion by Nass/Williams to appoint 
Turville-Heitz as Vice Chair.  Turville-Heitz accepted.  Motion passed 4-0. 

6. Approval of Board of Health Meeting Minutes April 17th, 2024:  Motion by 
Nass/Turville-Heitz to approve the minutes as printed.  Motion passed 4-0.   

7. Communications 
a. CDC Health Alert Network:  0510-06/13/2024 Increased Risk of Dengue Virus 

Infections in the United States – McGeary discussed. 
b. CDC Health Alert Network:  0509-06/12/2024 Severe Illness Potentially 

Associated with Consuming Diamond Shruumz TM Brand Chocolate Bars, Cones, 
and Gummies – McGeary discussed.  



 

c. CDC Health Alert Network:  0508-05/20/2024 Meningococcal Disease Cases 
Linked to Travel to the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia (KSA):  Ensure Pilgrims are 
Current on Meningococcal Vaccination - McGeary discussed. 

d. CDC Health Alert Network:  0507-04/23/2024 Adverse Effects Linked to 
Counterfeit or Mishandled Botulinum Toxin Injections – McGeary discussed. 

8. Public Comment:  1 guest spoke on Agenda #14. 
9. Approval of Health Department Financial Report:  Schmidt reviewed the “May 2024 

Statement of Revenue & Expense Report”.  Motion by Williams/Nass to approve the 
financial report.  Motion passed 5-0. 

10. Discussion and Approval of $40,000.00 Immunization Grant:  McGeary discussed the 
Grant.  This will assist the Health Department with revenue to bring the LPN to the 
Health Department full time instead of sharing the position with Human Services.  
Motion by Nass/Williams to approve the Immunization Grant.  Motion passed 5–0.  

11. Discussion and Approval of $9009.00 WI WINS Grant:  McGeary discussed the Grant 
and the Health Department will serve as fiscal agent for Dodge and Jefferson Counties.  
Motion by Nass/Turville-Heitz to approve the WI WINS Grant.  Motion passed 5-0. 

12. Discussion and Approval of $500.00 in restriction donations for Safe Sleep Program:  
McGeary discussed the Kiwanis Club of Jefferson donation for the Safe Sleep Program.  
Motion by Williams/Turville-Heitz to approve the restricted donation.  Motion passed 5-
0. 

13. Operational Update of the Environmental Health Program:  Hisel reported end of year 
inspections.  Hisel reported that the Jefferson County Fair inspections went well.  Hisel 
reported on a pool incident that happened over the weekend.    

14. Discussion on Nitrate Screening Data Collection:  McGeary discussed the data that has 
been collected.  Cicero discussed how the collection of data works.  Cicero reported that 
she is waiting for the ground water study report to come. Nitrate Screening Data 
collection continues as is.  

15. Operational Update of the Public Health Divisions 
a. Public Health Program Manager – Kendell Cooper – McGeary introduced Cooper as the 

new Public Health Manager.  Bender retired.     
b. Full Time – Licensed Practitioner Nurse –  McGeary discussed. 
c. Vacant Position – Communicable Disease Nurse – McGeary reported that so far 7 

candidates have applied.  Interviews have begun.   
d. Divisional Updates -  McGeary provided updates. 
e. Review of Statistics –   McGeary reviewed. 
f. Review of Communicable Disease Cases Reported – Cooper discussed the 

communicable disease report.   
16.  Operational Update on the Strategic Plan:  McGeary provided updates on each of the   

priority areas within the strategic plan.  
17. Discussion and Approval of the 2023 Annual Report:  McGeary discussed the Report.  

McGeary discussed the addition to page 26.  Motion by Turville-Heitz/Williams to 
approve the 2023 Annual Report with the changes to the Environmental Health.  Motion 
passed 5-0. 

18.  Future Agenda Items:  No future Agenda items were requested at this time.  



 

19.  Adjourn:  Motion by Nass/Turville-Heitz to adjourn the meeting at 2:19 p.m.  Motion   
passed 5-0. 
 

Next Scheduled Meeting:  October 16th, 2024 
 
Minutes prepared by:  Michele Schmidt, Accountant ll, Jefferson County Health Department and reviewed by Elizabeth McGeary, 
Director/Health Officer. 


	October2024BOHAgenda (1)
	BOH - 071724 (1)
	CD Report 7-2024 through 9-2024
	Confirmed

	CHIP Workgroup Infographic 2023-2026
	Nitrate Screening Tool Tracking Sheet - 2024
	Restricted Donations
	SKM_C45824101116290
	Spreadhsheet

